
      Approved: February 4, 2013 1 

 2 

MINUTES - PRAIRIEVILLE TOWNSHIP Special Meeting 3 

January 7, 2013; 7:30 PM; LGI (Large Group Instruction) Auditorium at Delton-Kellogg 4 

High School at 327 N. Grove Street, Delton, Michigan 5 

 6 

CALL TO ORDER 7 

Supervisor Stoneburner called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 8 

 9 

ROLL CALL 10 

Members present:   Clerk DeVries, Supervisor Stoneburner, Treasurer McGuire, Trustee Grundy 11 

and Trustee Goebel. 12 

Members absent:  None.    13 

There were approximately 50 other interested persons present. 14 

 15 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - All present stood for the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag of the 16 

United States of America.  17 

 18 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 19 

The agenda was reviewed.  It was moved by Trustee Goebel, seconded by Trusty Grundy, to 20 

approve the agenda as presented.  The motion passed unanimously.  21 

 22 

CORRESPONDENCE 23 

Supervisor Stoneburner indicated that there was no correspondence except for correspondence 24 

pertaining to the matter scheduled for public hearing at this evening’s meeting, which 25 

correspondence would be reviewed when the Board came to that agenda item. 26 

 27 

PUBLIC COMMENT   28 

There was no public comment. 29 

 30 

PINE LAKE AQUATIC PLANT CONTROL PROJECT 31 

Supervisor Stoneburner indicated that the next item of business was consideration of the plans 32 

for an aquatic plant control project within the proposed PINE LAKE AQUATIC PLANT 33 

CONTROL PROJECT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 12-1, the estimate of costs for 34 

the project, the special assessment district proposed to be created for the recovery of such costs 35 

and the petitions for the same. 36 

 37 

Clerk DeVries reported that proper Notice of Hearing on these matters had been published in the 38 

Hastings Banner on December 20, 2012 and December 27, 2012, and had been mailed by 39 

first-class mail to each property owner within the proposed special assessment district as 40 

required by statute.  Affidavits of the publication and mailing of these notices are on file with the 41 

Township Clerk. 42 

 43 

Supervisor Stoneburner noted that Mr. Andy Tomaszewski of PLM Lake and Land Management, 44 

Mr. Jay Wesley of the MDNR and Township Attorney Ken Sparks were present with respect to 45 



2 

 

this matter.  Supervisor Stoneburner then requested that the Township Attorney provide a brief 1 

legal overview of the special assessment proceedings.   2 

 3 

The Township Attorney noted that these special assessment proceedings had been initiated as a 4 

result of petitions that were filed with the Township Board requesting the initiation of the special 5 

assessment proceedings.  It was indicated that petitions signed by the owners of 70.2% of the 6 

land area in the proposed special assessment district had been filed with the Township.  It was 7 

indicated that the proposed special assessment district consisted of all assessable properties in 8 

Prairieville Township abutting Pine Lake or having deeded access to Pine Lake.  The Township 9 

Attorney indicated that plans had been prepared and were on file for the proposed 5 year aquatic 10 

plant control project.  He indicated that a cost estimate was also on file and that the total 11 

estimated cost of the project was $227,135.  He indicated that it was tentatively proposed that 12 

there would be a special assessment of $424.55 payable in annual installments of $84.91 for lots 13 

having Lake Frontage and that the special assessment would be one-half that amount for back 14 

lots having deeded access.   15 

 16 

The Township Attorney noted that this evening’s public hearing was on the petitions for the 17 

project, the proposed special assessment district, the cost estimate and the plans for the project.  18 

He indicated that if this process proceeded further, there would then be a second public hearing 19 

which would be on the proposed special assessment roll for the project. 20 

 21 

The Township Attorney encouraged persons speaking during the public hearing to give their 22 

name for the record each time they speak.  The Township Attorney indicated that if any persons 23 

present wished to object to the special assessment, they should feel free to do so.  The Township 24 

Attorney noted that in order to preserve the right to appeal a special assessment to the Michigan 25 

Tax Tribunal, a property owner would need to make objection prior to the conclusion of the 26 

second public hearing on the special assessment. 27 

 28 

The Supervisor then asked Mr. Tomaszewski to provide a brief summary of the proposed aquatic 29 

plant control project.  Mr. Tomaszewski briefly reviewed the services provided by his company.  30 

He indicated that his company had been contacted by persons residing on Pine Lake regarding a 31 

continuing problem with Eurasian milfoil.  He indicated that he and his company had been 32 

involved with Pine Lake for approximately 8 years.  He indicated that a lake survey taken by his 33 

company showed that Eurasian milfoil was scattered throughout the lake.  He indicated that the 34 

proposed treatment program would consist of applying the chemical Sonar to the entire lake in 35 

the spring of 2013.  He indicated that it was anticipated that there would be a “bump-up” 36 

treatment of Sonar approximately 2½ weeks later.  He indicated that the lake would then be 37 

monitored and that it was anticipated that in the subsequent 4 years of the program there would 38 

be spot treatments as needed using conventional herbicides.   39 

 40 

Mr. Jay Wesley of the Fisheries Division of the MDNR then addressed the Board and other 41 

persons present.  He indicated that MDEQ manages lake treatment programs and issues permits 42 

for the same.  He indicated that the MDNR may on occasion give recommendations to MDEQ.  43 

He indicated that he was present to answer questions pertaining to impacts on aquatic wildlife.   44 



3 

 

Supervisor Stoneburner noted that the Board had received a number of letters from property 1 

owners opposing or supporting the proposed project.  He indicated that copies of these letters had 2 

been provided to each Township Board member, except for a letter from Andrew Porritt that had 3 

been hand delivered just prior to this meeting.  Mr. Porritt’s letter had been made available to 4 

each Board member for review.  Supervisor Stoneburner noted that Mr. Porritt, Joe Gabos, Janis 5 

Laurens (2 letters), Bernard and Lori VanderPloeg and George Hoffman had submitted letters 6 

opposing the project. He indicated that Mr. Greg Denenfeld had submitted two letters in 7 

opposition to the project.  A letter was also received from Koert Howlands expressing concerns 8 

regarding the proposed project.  Supervisor Stoneburner indicated that the Board had received 9 

letters supporting the project from Randy Klinger, Joseph and Lana Langone, Frank and Nancy 10 

Spitters, Alisa and Greg Heidrich (2 letters), Patricia and Harold Pope, Steve and Carol Nemeth, 11 

Nick and Erin Vitellaro and Benjamin and Elizabeth Simon in support of the project.  12 

 13 

The Supervisor then opened the hearing to public comment.  Mr. Troy Sage indicated that he 14 

opposed the project.  He indicated that it could not be guaranteed that the program would get rid 15 

of the weeds.  He expressed concern about the effect of the chemicals upon fish.  He indicated 16 

that grandkids and a rake are the best approach to controlling the milfoil.  He indicated that he 17 

was concerned about the effect of the treatment program upon the environment. 18 

 19 

Mr. Tomaszewski indicated that there is no permanent solution to the Eurasian milfoil problem.  20 

He indicated that the manufacturer and his company do guarantee the effectiveness of Sonar and 21 

the proposed treatment program.  He indicated that Sonar breaks down and does not cause an 22 

environmental problem.  He indicated that it would not, however, permanently eradicate 23 

Eurasian milfoil and that further treatment may well be needed in the future.  24 

 25 

Mr. Frank Spitters indicated that he and his wife have lived on Pine Lake for 4 years.  He 26 

indicated that they have experienced a very significant Eurasian milfoil problem.  He indicated 27 

that he has spoken with a number of other lake residents regarding this matter, including having 28 

conversations with Mr. Joe Gabos.  He indicated that he has also attended a number of meetings 29 

at which a PLM representative was present.  He indicated that there is definitely a problem and 30 

the question is one of how best to solve the problem.  He noted that people from other lakes have 31 

come to some of the Pine Lake meetings and indicated that the PLM treatment programs on their 32 

lakes have been successful.  He indicated that he believed Mr. Tomaszewski has the best answer 33 

and that it has worked for other lakes. 34 

 35 

Mr. Koert Howland indicated that he was opposed to the project.  He indicated that the proposed 36 

Sonar treatment is too aggressive and that there should instead just be a program of targeted spot 37 

treatments.  He cited Houghton Lake as an example of where a targeted program had been used.  38 

He indicated that there may be other weeds that are also a problem and that would require a 39 

different treatment method.  He indicated that reliance upon a spring survey is misleading in that 40 

nature species become more abundant later in the season and that they are keeping Eurasian 41 

milfoil at a 10% level later in the year. 42 

 43 

Mr. Tomaszewski indicated that his company had performed both a spring and a fall survey.  Mr. 44 

Howland indicated that he would like to see that fall survey. 45 



4 

 

Mr. Tomaszewski indicated that Houghton Lake had used a Sonar treatment originally to bring 1 

the Eurasian milfoil infestation level down.  He indicated that in his opinion just relying on spot 2 

treatments would not be sufficient. 3 

 4 

Mr. Howland indicated that he believed there were other ways to control the Eurasian milfoil 5 

without a whole lake treatment of Sonar.  He indicated that he believed it was important that the 6 

Township Board understand the facts before it proceeds. 7 

 8 

In response to a question from Trustee Grundy, Mr. Tomaszewski indicated that the proposed 9 

treatment program was targeted at controlling Eurasian milfoil, which is a problem in Pine Lake.  10 

Mr. Tomaszewski indicated that he believed that reliance just upon a spot treatment program 11 

would be difficult to effectively accomplish when the Eurasian milfoil infestation has reached 12 

the point that it is at on Pine Lake. 13 

 14 

Mr. Jay Wesley indicated that the MDNR had conducted a non-scientific survey of Pine Lake 15 

and that he had participated in this.  Mr. Wesley indicated that this was a visual survey 16 

conducted from a boat.  He indicated that he and his division prefer to avoid whole lake 17 

treatments because of concern that it can adversely impact native vegetation and aquatic wildlife.  18 

He indicated that he must acknowledge, however, that if Sonar is used properly, killing of native 19 

vegetation and adverse impact on aquatic wildlife can be avoided.  He indicated that he, 20 

however, prefers spot treatment.  He indicated it must also be acknowledged that the MDEQ 21 

allows Sonar treatments.  22 

 23 

Ms. Joanna Haneckow inquired as to whether it was true that approximately 135 acres of the 660 24 

acres of Pine Lake has milfoil.  Mr. Tomaszewski indicated that this would appear to be correct 25 

based upon rough calculation.  He indicated that 47 of the 56 lake segments that had been 26 

surveyed had Eurasian milfoil.  Ms. Haneckow indicated that almost all of the Pine Lake 27 

shoreline has a milfoil problem. 28 

 29 

Mr. Andrew Porritt noted that it had been indicated that the MDNR prefers a spot treatment 30 

program.  He indicated that there are also environmental concerns in terms of aquatic wildlife.   31 

 32 

Mr. Wesley indicated that the chemicals proposed for use in the proposed program have been 33 

approved by the MDEQ for use.  He indicated that copper sulfate, which is used to treat algae, is 34 

more of a concern than Sonar.  He indicated that if significant amounts of lake vegetation are 35 

destroyed in a treatment program, this can cause oxygen depletion problems.   36 

 37 

Mr. Tomaszewski indicated that he has been involved in hundreds of Sonar treatments and has 38 

never had an environmental problem.  He indicated that he has never experienced an algae bloom 39 

problem from using Sonar. 40 

 41 

Ms. Jacki Dalke indicated that there is a greater environmental concern with the current situation 42 

in which individual property owners are dumping chemicals in the lake to try to treat the 43 

Eurasian milfoil problem around their lakefronts.  She indicated that it would be better to have 44 

one comprehensively managed treatment program. 45 



5 

 

 1 

In response to a question from Mr. Jim Parker, the Township Attorney indicated that the 2 

Township has no authority to charge outside boat owners for use of Pine Lake. 3 

 4 

Mr. Koert Howland indicated that the 2012 survey conducted by PLM had a fewer number of 5 

samples than the survey performed in 2007 and did not meet the MDEQ guidelines.  Mr. 6 

Tomaszewski indicated that the survey conducted by PLM in September of 2012, as opposed to 7 

the less formal spring survey, encompassed 126 sites.  He indicated that this satisfied MDEQ 8 

standards.  He indicated that this latter survey conducted in 2012 had been specifically conducted 9 

for permitting purposes. 10 

 11 

There being no further public comment, Supervisor Stoneburner closed the public hearing. 12 

 13 

In the Township Board discussion that followed, Mr. Tomaszewski indicated in response to a 14 

question from Trustee Grundy that in his opinion the prospects for success of a spot treatment 15 

program would be much more unpredictable than the treatment program recommended by PLM.  16 

Mr. Tomaszewski indicated that use of Sonar would result in a much greater chance for 17 

successful treatment of the Eurasian milfoil problem.  Mr. Tomaszewski further indicated that 18 

the plan prepared by him did budget for the possibility of another Sonar treatment in 2016 if it 19 

was needed.  He indicated that neither PLM nor the MDEQ would support this further Sonar 20 

treatment if it was not needed.  Mr. Tomaszewski further indicated that if only a spot treatment 21 

program is used, it would result in much more treatment and the placement of more chemicals in 22 

the lake.  23 

 24 

Treasurer McGuire indicated that she lives on Upper Crooked Lake, which is subject to a 25 

continuing treatment program.  Mr. Tomaszewski indicated that milfoil will never be 26 

permanently eradicated.  He indicated that Upper Cooked Lake has 5 exotic plant species in it, 27 

not just Eurasian milfoil.  Treasurer McGuire indicated that the treatment program has improved 28 

Upper Crooked Lake.  She indicated that she believed it was important to go with a company that 29 

has a good record.   30 

 31 

In response to a question from Trustee Goebel, Mr. Tomaszewski indicated that 2-4D is one of 32 

the chemicals used for spot treatment, but that it cannot be applied near a shoreline.  Mr. 33 

Tomaszewski indicated that contact herbicides only provide a short term fix.   34 

 35 

Clerk DeVries inquired as to whether there would be a problem with getting the permit 36 

application to the MDEQ in time.  Mr. Tomaszewski indicated that this should not be a problem.  37 

 38 

The Township Attorney noted that a series of resolutions had been prepared for the Board’s 39 

consideration in case the Board determined that it wished to proceed with the special assessment 40 

project.  The Township Attorney indicated that the Township Board was not legally obligated to 41 

proceed with the project and that the Board also had discretion to defer making a decision until a 42 

later date if it so wished.  The Township Attorney then reviewed the first resolution that had been 43 

prepared.   44 

 45 



6 

 

The following Preamble and Resolution were, upon motion, submitted by Trustee Goebel, 1 

supported by Trustee Grundy, for adoption: 2 

 3 

RESOLUTION ON PINE LAKE AQUATIC PLANT 4 

CONTROL PROJECT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 5 

NO. 12-1. 6 

 7 

 WHEREAS, the Township Board of the Township of Prairieville received petitions signed 8 

by the record owners of lands constituting more than fifty percent (50%) of the total area of the 9 

proposed special assessment district and determined both on the basis of the petitions and its own 10 

motion to proceed under the provisions of 1954 PA 188, as amended, to secure plans and 11 

estimates of costs together with a proposed special assessment district for assessing the cost of 12 

the proposed improvement and to schedule a public hearing upon the same for this date, and; 13 

 14 

 WHEREAS, the plans, petitions, estimates of costs and proposed special assessment 15 

district were filed with the Township Clerk for public examination and notice of the within 16 

hearing upon the same was published and mailed in accordance with law and statute as shown by 17 

affidavits pertaining thereto on file with the Township Clerk, and; 18 

 19 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with the aforesaid notices, a hearing was held on January 7, 20 

2013, commencing at 7:30 p.m. and all persons given an opportunity to be heard in the within 21 

matter; and 22 

 23 

 WHEREAS, as a result of the foregoing, the Township Board believes the project to be in 24 

the best interests of the Township and of the district proposed to be established therefore. 25 

 26 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 27 

 28 

 1. That this Township Board does hereby determine that the petitions for the PINE 29 

LAKE AQUATIC PLANT CONTROL PROJECT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 30 

12-1 were properly signed by the record owners of land constituting more than fifty percent 31 

(50%) of the total area of the hereinafter described special assessment district. 32 

 33 

 2. That this Township Board does hereby approve the plans for the project as 34 

prepared and presented to the Township Board and the estimate of cost for the completion 35 

thereof of Two Hundred Twenty Seven Thousand One Hundred Thirty Five Dollars ($227,135). 36 

  37 

 3. That this Township Board does hereby create, determine and define as a special 38 

assessment district to be known as PINE LAKE AQUATIC PLANT CONTROL PROJECT 39 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 12-1 within which Two Hundred Twenty Seven 40 

Thousand One Hundred Thirty Five Dollars ($227,135) of the cost of such improvements shall 41 

be assessed according to benefits, against the following properties identified by parcel number 42 

below:  43 

 44 

12-005-001-00 12-005-003-00 12-005-004-00 12-005-006-00 



7 

 

12-005-200-00 
12-006-003-25 
12-006-003-26 
12-006-003-30 
12-006-003-40 
12-006-005-60 
12-006-006-00 
12-006-007-00 
12-006-008-00 
12-006-009-00 
12-006-010-00 
12-006-011-00 
12-006-012-00 
12-006-013-00 
12-006-014-00 
12-006-015-10 
12-006-015-20 
12-006-016-00 
12-006-016-05 
12-006-016-10 
12-006-016-20 
12-006-016-30 
12-006-016-40 
12-006-016-50 
12-006-016-60 
12-006-017-05 
12-006-017-10 
12-006-017-15 
12-006-017-20 
12-006-017-30 
12-006-017-35 
12-006-020-00 
12-006-021-10 
12-006-025-00 
12-006-026-00 
12-006-027-00 
12-006-028-00 
12-006-029-00 
12-006-031-00 
12-006-036-00 
12-006-037-00 
12-006-038-00 
12-006-039-00 
12-006-040-00 
12-006-041-00 
12-006-042-00 
12-006-043-00 
12-006-044-00 
12-006-045-00 
12-006-046-00 
12-006-047-00 
12-006-048-00 
12-006-049-00 
12-006-051-00 
12-006-052-00 
12-006-053-00 

12-006-054-00 
12-006-056-00 
12-006-057-00 
12-006-058-00 
12-006-060-00 
12-006-061-00 
12-006-063-00 
12-006-063-10 
12-006-064-00 
12-006-068-00 
12-006-069-00 
12-006-070-00 
12-006-071-00 
12-006-072-00 
12-006-073-00 
12-006-074-00 
12-006-075-00 
12-006-076-00 
12-006-077-00 
12-006-078-00 
12-006-079-00 
12-006-080-00 
12-006-081-00 
12-006-082-00 
12-006-083-00 
12-006-084-00 
12-006-085-00 
12-006-086-00 
12-006-088-00 
12-006-089-00 
12-006-343-00 
12-007-001-00 
12-007-002-00 
12-007-003-00 
12-007-004-00 
12-007-005-00 
12-007-006-00 
12-007-006-10 
12-007-006-40 
12-007-006-45 
12-007-006-50 
12-007-006-65 
12-007-006-70 
12-007-006-81 
12-007-006-95 
12-007-009-10 
12-007-009-20 
12-007-009-30 
12-007-009-40 
12-007-011-00 
12-007-012-00 
12-008-001-00 
12-008-002-00 
12-008-003-00 
12-008-004-00 
12-008-005-00 

12-008-014-00 
12-008-015-00 
12-008-015-10 
12-008-016-00 
12-008-017-00 
12-008-018-10 
12-008-018-35 
12-008-018-40 
12-008-019-00 
12-008-020-00 
12-008-021-00 
12-008-321-00 
12-008-324-00 
12-090-001-00 
12-090-002-00 
12-090-003-00 
12-090-004-00 
12-090-005-00 
12-090-006-00 
12-120-001-00 
12-120-002-00 
12-120-003-00 
12-120-004-00 
12-120-005-00 
12-120-006-00 
12-120-007-00 
12-120-008-00 
12-120-009-00 
12-140-001-00 
12-140-002-00 
12-140-003-00 
12-140-004-00 
12-140-005-00 
12-140-007-00 
12-150-001-00 
12-150-002-00 
12-150-003-00 
12-150-004-00 
12-150-006-00 
12-150-008-00 
12-150-008-10 
12-160-001-00 
12-160-003-00 
12-160-006-00 
12-160-007-00 
12-160-008-00 
12-160-009-00 
12-160-010-00 
12-160-012-00 
12-160-013-00 
12-160-014-00 
12-160-015-00 
12-160-016-00 
12-160-017-00 
12-160-019-00 
12-170-001-00 

12-170-002-00 
12-170-002-10 
12-170-002-20 
12-170-003-00 
12-170-004-00 
12-170-005-00 
12-170-006-00 
12-170-007-00 
12-170-008-00 
12-180-000-00 
12-180-001-00 
12-180-001-10 
12-180-002-00 
12-180-004-00 
12-180-005-00 
12-180-006-00 
12-180-007-00 
12-180-009-00 
12-180-010-00 
12-180-011-00 
12-180-013-00 
12-180-014-00 
12-180-015-00 
12-180-016-00 
12-180-017-00 
12-180-018-00 
12-180-019-00 
12-180-020-00 
12-180-021-00 
12-180-021-10 
12-180-022-01 
12-180-023-01 
12-180-023-10 
12-180-024-00 
12-180-025-00 
12-180-026-00 
12-180-027-00 
12-180-028-00 
12-180-029-00 
12-180-030-00 
12-180-031-00 
12-180-032-00 
12-180-033-00 
12-180-034-00 
12-180-035-00 
12-180-036-00 
12-180-037-00 
12-180-038-00 
12-180-039-00 
12-180-040-00 
12-180-041-00 
12-180-042-00 
12-180-043-00 
12-180-044-00 
12-180-045-00 
12-180-046-00 



8 

 

12-180-047-00 
12-180-048-00 
12-180-049-00 
12-190-001-00 
12-190-002-00 
12-190-003-00 
12-190-004-00 
12-190-005-00 
12-190-006-00 
12-190-007-00 
12-190-008-00 
12-190-009-00 
12-190-012-00 
12-190-013-00 
12-190-014-00 
12-190-015-00 
12-190-016-00 
12-190-017-00 
12-190-018-00 
12-190-020-00 
12-190-021-00 
12-190-022-00 
12-190-022-10 
12-190-022-20 
12-190-023-00 
12-260-000-00 
12-260-001-00 
12-260-002-00 
12-260-005-00 
12-260-006-00 
12-260-007-00 
12-260-008-00 
12-260-009-00 
12-260-010-00 
12-260-011-00 
12-260-012-00 
12-260-013-00 
12-260-014-00 
12-270-001-00 
12-270-002-00 
12-270-003-00 
12-270-003-05 
12-270-004-00 
12-270-005-00 
12-270-005-10 
12-290-001-00 
12-290-002-00 
12-290-003-00 
12-290-004-00 
12-290-005-00 
12-290-005-10 
12-290-006-00 
12-290-007-00 
12-290-008-00 
12-290-010-00 
12-290-011-00 

12-290-012-00 
12-290-013-01 
12-290-014-01 
12-290-015-00 
12-290-016-00 
12-290-017-00 
12-290-018-00 
12-290-019-00 
12-290-020-00 
12-290-021-00 
12-290-022-00 
12-290-023-00 
12-290-024-00 
12-290-025-00 
12-290-027-00 
12-290-028-00 
12-290-031-00 
12-290-032-00 
12-290-032-10 
12-290-033-00 
12-290-034-00 
12-290-034-20 
12-290-034-35 
12-290-035-00 
12-290-036-00 
12-290-037-00 
12-290-038-00 
12-290-039-00 
12-290-039-20 
12-290-040-00 
12-290-042-00 
12-290-044-00 
12-290-045-00 
12-290-046-00 
12-290-047-00 
12-290-048-00 
12-290-049-00 
12-290-049-10 
12-290-050-30 
12-290-050-35 
12-290-053-00 
12-290-054-01 
12-290-054-02 
12-290-055-01 
12-290-056-00 
12-290-056-10 
12-290-057-00 
12-290-058-00 
12-290-059-00 
12-290-060-00 
12-290-061-00 
12-290-062-00 
12-290-063-00 
12-290-064-00 
12-290-065-00 
12-310-001-00 

12-310-002-00 
12-310-003-00 
12-310-004-00 
12-310-005-00 
12-310-006-00 
12-310-006-90 
12-310-007-00 
12-310-008-00 
12-310-009-00 
12-310-010-00 
12-310-011-00 
12-310-012-00 
12-310-013-00 
12-310-014-00 
12-310-015-00 
12-310-016-00 
12-310-017-00 
12-310-018-00 
12-310-019-00 
12-310-020-00 
12-310-021-00 
12-310-022-00 
12-310-023-00 
12-310-024-00 
12-310-025-00 
12-310-026-00 
12-310-120-00 
12-320-001-00 
12-320-001-40 
12-320-001-60 
12-320-002-00 
12-320-003-00 
12-320-004-00 
12-320-006-00 
12-320-007-00 
12-320-008-00 
12-320-010-00 
12-320-010-30 
12-320-011-00 
12-320-012-00 
12-320-013-00 
12-320-014-00 
12-320-015-00 
12-320-016-00 
12-320-017-00 
12-320-018-00 
12-320-019-00 
12-320-019-10 
12-320-020-00 
12-320-020-10 
12-320-021-00 
12-320-021-10 
12-320-024-00 
12-320-026-00 
12-320-026-10 
12-320-026-20 

12-320-026-40 
12-320-026-60 
12-320-029-00 
12-320-029-10 
12-320-029-20 
12-320-030-00 
12-320-031-00 
12-320-032-00 
12-320-033-00 
12-320-035-00 
12-320-036-00 
12-320-037-00 
12-320-038-00 
12-320-040-00 
12-320-041-00 
12-320-042-00 
12-320-043-00 
12-320-044-00 
12-320-045-00 
12-320-046-00 
12-320-046-10 
12-340-001-00 
12-340-002-00 
12-340-003-00 
12-340-004-00 
12-340-005-00 
12-340-006-00 
12-340-007-00 
12-340-008-00 
12-340-009-00 
12-340-010-00 
12-360-001-00 
12-360-002-00 
12-360-003-00 
12-360-004-00 
12-360-005-00 
12-360-006-00 
12-360-007-00 
12-360-008-00 
12-360-009-00 
12-360-010-00 
12-360-011-00 
12-360-012-00 
12-360-013-00 
12-360-014-00 
12-360-015-00 
12-360-017-00 
12-360-020-00 
12-360-021-00 
12-360-022-00 
12-360-023-00 
12-360-024-00 
12-360-024-10 
12-360-025-00 
12-360-026-00 
12-360-027-00 



9 

 

12-360-029-00 
12-360-030-00 
12-360-031-00 
12-360-031-05 
12-360-032-00 
12-360-033-00 
12-360-034-00 
12-360-035-00 
12-360-036-00 
12-370-001-00 
12-370-002-00 
12-370-003-00 
12-370-004-00 
12-370-005-00 
12-370-006-00 
12-370-007-00 
12-370-008-00 
12-370-009-00 
12-370-010-00 
12-370-010-10 
12-370-011-00 
12-370-012-10 
12-370-013-00 
12-430-001-00 
12-430-002-00 
12-430-003-00 
12-430-004-00 
12-430-005-00 
12-430-006-00 
12-430-007-00 
12-430-008-00 
12-430-009-00 
12-430-010-00 
12-430-011-00 
12-430-012-00 
12-430-013-00 
12-430-014-00 
12-430-016-00 
12-430-017-00 
12-450-001-00 
12-450-001-10 
12-450-001-20 
12-450-001-30 
12-450-001-50 
12-450-001-55 

12-450-001-70 
12-450-001-90 
12-450-002-00 
12-450-003-00 
12-450-004-00 
12-450-005-00 
12-450-006-00 
12-450-007-00 
12-450-008-00 
12-450-009-00 
12-450-010-00 
12-450-011-00 
12-450-012-00 
12-450-013-00 
12-450-014-00 
12-450-015-00 
12-450-016-00 
12-450-017-00 
12-450-018-00 
12-450-018-10 
12-450-018-20 
12-450-018-30 
12-450-018-40 
12-450-018-50 
12-450-019-00 
12-450-019-10 
12-450-020-00 
12-450-021-00 
12-470-001-00 
12-470-001-20 
12-470-001-30 
12-470-001-50 
12-470-001-60 
12-470-001-70 
12-470-003-00 
12-470-004-00 
12-470-005-00 
12-470-006-00 
12-470-007-00 
12-470-008-00 
12-470-008-10 
12-470-009-00 
12-470-010-00 
12-470-011-00 
12-480-001-00 

12-480-002-00 
12-480-004-00 
12-480-006-00 
12-480-007-00 
12-480-008-00 
12-480-009-00 
12-480-010-00 
12-480-013-00 
12-480-014-00 
12-480-015-00 
12-480-016-00 
12-480-018-00 
12-480-019-00 
12-480-021-00 
12-480-022-00 
12-500-000-00 
12-500-001-00 
12-500-004-00 
12-500-005-00 
12-500-006-00 
12-500-007-00 
12-500-008-00 
12-500-009-00 
12-500-010-00 
12-500-011-00 
12-500-012-00 
12-500-013-00 
12-500-014-00 
12-500-015-00 
12-500-016-00 
12-500-017-00 
12-500-018-00 
12-500-019-00 
12-500-020-00 
12-500-021-00 
12-500-022-00 
12-500-023-00 
12-500-024-00 
12-500-025-00 
12-500-026-00 
12-500-027-00 
12-500-028-00 
12-500-029-00 
12-500-030-00 
12-500-031-00 

12-500-032-00 
12-500-033-00 
12-500-034-00 
12-510-001-20 
12-510-002-00 
12-510-003-30 
12-510-005-00 
12-510-006-00 
12-510-007-00 
12-510-009-00 
12-510-010-00 
12-510-011-00 
12-510-012-00 
12-510-013-00 
12-510-014-00 
12-510-015-00 
12-510-016-00 
12-540-001-00 
12-540-002-00 
12-540-003-00 
12-540-004-00 
12-540-004-10 
12-540-005-00 
12-540-005-10 
12-540-007-00 
12-540-008-00 
12-540-009-00 
12-540-010-00 
12-540-011-00 
12-540-012-00 
12-540-013-00 
12-540-014-00 
12-540-015-00 
12-540-016-00 
12-540-017-00 
12-540-018-00 
12-540-019-00 
12-540-020-00 
12-540-021-00 
12-540-022-00 
12-540-023-00 
12-540-024-00 
12-540-025-00 

  
 
 
 
 
 



 

10 
 

The special assessment district shall remain in existence until all assessments and interests 1 

thereon have been paid. 2 

 3 

 4. That on the basis of the foregoing, this Township Board does hereby direct the 4 

Supervisor and Assessing Officer to make a special assessment roll in which shall be entered and 5 

described all the parcels of land to be assessed with the names of the respective owners thereof if 6 

known, and a total amount to be assessed against each parcel of land which amount shall be the 7 

relative portion of the whole sum to be levied against all parcels of land in the special assessment 8 

district as the benefit to the parcel of land bears to the total benefit to all the parcels of land in the 9 

special assessment district.  When the same has been completed, the Supervisor and Assessing 10 

Officer shall affix thereto his certificate stating that it was made pursuant to this Resolution and 11 

that in making such assessment roll, he has, according to his best judgment, conformed in all 12 

respects to the directions contained in this Resolution and the applicable state statutes. 13 

 14 

 5. That all Resolutions and parts of Resolutions insofar as they conflict with the 15 

provisions of the within Resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded. 16 

 17 

 Upon roll call vote, the following voted "Aye": 18 

 19 

 Jim Stoneburner, Supervisor 20 

 Ted DeVries, Clerk  21 

 Kassandra McGuire, Treasurer 22 

 Jim Grundy, Trustee 23 

 Rod Goebel, Trustee 24 

 25 

 The following voted "Nay": 26 

 27 

 None 28 

 29 

The Supervisor declared the motion carried and the Resolution duly adopted. 30 

 31 

It was noted that the Supervisor, in anticipation of the foregoing Resolution, had completed a 32 

special assessment roll in accordance with that Resolution.  The Supervisor then attached his 33 

Certificate to the assessment roll.  The assessment roll was then received and filed with the office 34 

of the Township Clerk. 35 

 36 

The Township Attorney then reviewed a second draft Resolution that had been prepared by him. 37 

 38 

The following Preamble and Resolution were then submitted upon motion of Clerk DeVries, 39 

supported by Trustee Goebel: 40 

 41 

42 



 

11 
 

RESOLUTION SCHEDULING HEARING ON 1 

ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR PINE LAKE AQUATIC PLANT 2 

CONTROL PROJECT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 3 

NO. 12-1 4 

 5 

 WHEREAS the Supervisor and Assessing Officer of the Township has, in accordance with 6 

Resolution of the Township Board and the laws and statutes pertinent thereto, prepared a special 7 

assessment roll in the amount of Two Hundred Twenty Seven Thousand One Hundred Thirty 8 

Five Dollars ($227,135) for the parcels of land in the PINE LAKE AQUATIC PLANT 9 

CONTROL PROJECT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 12-1, according to the 10 

relation of the benefit to each parcel of land to the total benefit to all parcels of land in such 11 

special assessment district and has affixed thereto his certificate as required by said Resolution. 12 

 13 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 14 

 15 

 1. That said special assessment roll shall be filed with the Township Clerk and shall 16 

be available for public examination during regular working hours of regular working days from 17 

the present date until the public hearing on the same and shall further be examined at such public 18 

hearing. 19 

 20 

 2. That the Township Board shall meet at  7:30 p.m. on February 4, 2013, at the LGI 21 

(Large Group Instruction) Auditorium at Delton-Kellogg High School at 327 N. Grove Street, 22 

Delton, Michigan, within the Township, to review such special assessment roll and hear any 23 

objections thereto. 24 

 25 

 3. That the Township Clerk shall cause notice of such hearing and the filing of such 26 

assessment roll to be published twice in the Hastings Banner, a newspaper of general circulation 27 

in the Township, prior to the date of the hearing with the first publication being not less than ten 28 

(10) days prior to the hearing and shall further cause Notice of such hearing to be mailed by first 29 

class mail to all owners or persons interested in property within the PINE LAKE AQUATIC 30 

PLANT CONTROL PROJECT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 12-1 as shown on 31 

the current assessment roll of the Township also at least ten (10) days prior to said hearing, all in 32 

accordance with the law and statute provided. 33 

 34 

 4. All Resolutions and parts of Resolutions insofar as they conflict with the 35 

provisions of the within Resolution are hereby rescinded. 36 

 37 

 Upon roll call vote, the following voted "Aye": 38 

 39 

 Jim Stoneburner, Supervisor 40 

 Ted DeVries, Clerk  41 

 Treasurer Kassandra McGuire  42 

 Trustee Jim Grundy 43 

 Trustee Rod Goebel 44 



 

12 
 

 The following voted "Nay": 1 

  2 

 None. 3 

 4 

The Supervisor declared the motion carried and the Resolution duly adopted. 5 

 6 

In response to a question from Treasurer McGuire, the Township Attorney indicated that the 7 

Township Board, through the actions taken by it at this evening’s meeting, had approved the 8 

petitions, cost estimate, plans and proposed special assessment district for the project.  He 9 

indicated that the second hearing to be held would be on the special assessment roll and not those 10 

issues that had been decided at this evening’s meeting. 11 

 12 

Supervisor Stoneburner indicated that he would like to thank Mr. Tomaszewski, Mr. Wesley, the 13 

Township Attorney and the public for their participation in this matter.   14 

 15 

There being no further matters to come before the Township Board, Trustee Goebel moved that 16 

the meeting be adjourned.  Trustee Grundy seconded the motion.  The motion passed 17 

unanimously and the meeting was adjourned at 10:22 p.m.  18 

 19 

       Respectfully submitted: 20 

 21 

 22 

       ______________________ 23 

       Ted DeVries, Clerk  24 


